7 % yUNlTED
S22 NATIONS

United Nations Diplomatic Conference Distr
of Plenipotentiaries on the Establishment GENERAL
of an International Criminal Court

A/CONF.183/C.1/SR.12
20 November 1998

Rome, Italy ORIGINAL: ENGLISH
15 June-17 July 1998

COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE
SUMMARY RECORD OF THE 12th MEETING
Held at the Headquarters of the Food and Agriculture Organization of the United Nations
on Tuesday, 23 June 1998, at 10 a.m.

Chairman Mr. P. KIRSCH (Canada)

CONTENTS

Agenda item Paragraphs

11 Consideration of the question concerning the finalization and adoption
of a convention on the establishment of an international criminal court
in accordance with General Assembly resolut®h®07 of
17 Decembet 996 and 52/160 of 15d2embefl 997 ¢ontinued 1-79

This record is subject to correction.

Corrections should be submitted in one of the working languages, set forth in a memorandum and/or incorporated in aremoydf the
They should be sent under the signature of a member of the delegation concerned to the Chief of the Official RecordstbditiRgp&a
DC2-750, United Nations, New York.

In accordance with the rules of procedure for the Conference, corrections may be submitted within five working daysrafittitre ¢
of the record. Any corrections to the records of the meetings of the Committee of the Whole will be consolidated in aigergiion

V.98-57465 (E)


<<ODS JOB NO>>V9857465e<<ODS JOB NO>> <<ODS DOC SYMBOL1>>A/CONF.183/C.1/SR.12<<ODS DOC SYMBOL1>> <<ODS DOC SYMBOL2>><<ODS DOC SYMBOL2>> 


A/CONF.183/C.1/SR.12
Page 2

The meeting was called to order at 10.20 a.m.

CONSIDERATION OF THE QUESTION CONCERNING THE FINALIZATION  AND ADOPTION OF A
CONVENTION ON THE ESTABLISHMENT OF AN INTE RNATIONAL CRIMINAL COURT, IN
ACCORDANCE WITH GENERAL A SSEMBLY RESOLUTIONS 51/207 OF 17 DECEMBER 1996 AND
52/160 OF 15 DECEMBER 1997continued (A/CONF.183/2Add.1 and Corr.1; A/CONES3/C.1/L.9 and L.14)

Part 2 of the draft Statut@€ontinued
Articles 14 to 19admissibility (continued

1. Mr. ABDELKADER MAHMUD (Iraq) said that he was in favour of the “alternative approach” set out at the
end of article 15, the view of his delegation being that cemenhtarity between the Court andioaal jurisdictions

implied mutual respect and trust. He had no problem with paragraph 1 of article 16 and the first part of paragraph 2,
but considered that paragraphs 3, 4 andduilsl be deleted. Iraq could@ept paragraph 1 of article 17 subject to its
comments regarding article 15, and could accagraph 2 apart from the sed bracketed sulapagraphdllowing
subparagraph (b). The expriess”StateParty” sould be used rather than the expression “State”. His delegation
favoured the “alternative approach” for article 18. It would propose that article 19 be deleted since it gave rise to a
number of complicated problems, notably in relation to the sovereignty of States. Lastly, in respect to article 20,
concerning applicable law, he considered that paragraph 1 (hjnwasessary and could be deleted, and he favoured
option 2 for @ragraph 1 (c).

2. Mr. NAGAMINE (Japan) supported the formulation proposed for article 15, and considered that article 16
should be retained, since the principle of complementarity should be applied even in the early stagessoigation.

Article 17 was a very important one, and he fully supported the view that the right of challenge provided for in
paragraph 2hould not be limited to States parties. He did not favour inclusioarafypaph 6While his delegation

could basically support the wording of article 18, it would propose that the words “for the same conduct” be added in
paragraph 3 after “shall be tried by the Court”, for the sake of clarityuliyauhderstood the idea behind the proposal

for article 19, but felt that it should be addressed with the utmost care since sensitive issues of national policy were
involved.

3. Ms. CUETO (Cuba) said that although theaff text of article 15 could begnod basis for compromise, it tended

to place too much emphasis on evaluating the conduct of national courts, and she supported the proposals of Mexico
in document A/CONF.183/C.1/L.14 in that regard. Concerning article 16, Cuba was concerned to preserve the principle
that States should have the right to appeal against the initial decisions of the Court. In article 17, the term “accused”
should be used and the word “suspect” deleted. Soarfed the expression “a State” rather than “a Ratty”. Her
delegation could@ept the deletion of article 14 on the understanding that its contents were reflected in article 17.
Article 18 appeared to contain an excessive humber of exceptiong biein idenprinciple, and she considered

that the “alternative approach” described at the end of the article was preferable.

4. Mr. GONZALEZ GALVEZ (Mexico), introducing his delegan’s proposals (A/CONES83/C.1/L.14), noted

that they contained a proposal for a new articldisznd proposed amendments to articles 102 and 108 as well as

to article 15. Concerning the suggestions made in regard to article 15, he noted that, as pointed out in document
A/CONF.183/2Add.1, the daft given there was not an agreed text. His delegation’s proposals were aimed at
facilitating ageement. If they were adopted, a related charmggdabe appropriate in article 18angagraph 3 (b).



A/CONF.183/C.1/SR.12
Page 3

5.  Mr. EFFENDI (Indonesia) said he was flexible on articles 14, 16, 17 and 20. He preferred the “alternative
approaches” suggested for articles 15 and 18, because they were in line with the principleeshentapty, and
proposed that article 19 be deleted.

6. Mr. KADDAH (Syrian Arab Republic) said his delegation too preferred the “alternative approaches”, which
embodied the idea of congphentarity. The Courtheuld not have jurisdiction in cases that were being investigated

or had been dealt with by a State. The amendments submitted by Mexico were helpful in clarifying the proposed
exceptions to that rule.

7. Mr. MAHMOOD (Pakistan) said his delegation was flexible regarding article 14. On article 15, concerning
admissibility, it supported the principle of the primacy of national juriedictvhich was acessary in order to preserve
national sovereignty and to avoid situations of conflict between the jurisdiction of the State and the jurisdiction of the
Court. It should be the responsibility of the State to prosecute criminals: the Courtrsordéklse to comgiment the

State’s judicial system if the latter proved inadequate.

8. He found article 17 generallg@eptable, although in his view States which were not States parties, even if
interested, should not be permitted to challenge the Court’s juigsditte could acept paragraphs 1 and 2 of article
18, but paragraph 3 created problems in chgiiey the jurisdiction and procedures of national courts. He could
support deletion of article 19. He found the text of article@@@table, with a preference for option 1 afggraph

1 (c).

9. Ms. LI Yanduan (China) said her delegation could agree to deletion of article 14. In article 15, the criteria for
determining the unwillingness of a State &porg out arinvestigation listed in @ragraph 2 werbkighly subjective, and

gave the Court unduly wide powers. In fact, the judicial systems of most countries were capabl@oifympcbperly:

the cases of Rwanda and the former Yugoslavia were exceptions to the rule. In order to make the wording more
objective, she proposed that in paragraph 2 (a) the wordiotation of the country’s law” be added after the words

“the national decision was made”. In paragraph 2 (b), a reference tortadatiles of procedure” should be included,

and in paragraph 2 (c) a reference to “the general applicable standardsrafimates of procedure”. She supported

the amendments proposed by Mexico. In article 17, the words “or a suspect” should be retairagtaplp 2 (a) and

the words “a State” used in paragraph 2 (b). $hdcaccept article 18, but considered that article 19 should be
deleted.

10. Mr. RAMA RAO (India) said that, as his delegation saw it, the principle of cameitarity, impling the

primacy of national criminal jurisdictions, should be the bedrock of the entire Statute. He was flexible on article 14,
but on article 15 he shared the views expressed by the representative of China concerning the criteria for determining
unwillingness on the part of a State to prosecute, andthvprefer the alternative approach suggested. He cocdgia

the text proposed by the United States for article 16, subject to the same reservation regarding criteria for determining
unwillingness, and could alse@ept article 18. Article 19 should be deleted.

11. Mr. R. P. DOMINGOS (Angola) considered that article 14 should incorporatagraph 1 of article 17, and

should be retained. He supported the amendments proposed by Mexico for article 15, and considered that the term
“suspect” should be used iamagraph 2 (a) of article 17. Article 19 was important dwdilsl be retained, and

he supported option 2 foapagraph 1 (c) of article 20.



A/CONF.183/C.1/SR.12
Page 4

12. Mr. Young-wook CHUN (Republic of Korea) said his delegation could agree to delete article 14, but supported
retention of article 15. In article 17agagraph 2, he ould prefer to delete “or a suspect” in satggraph (a), and
would opt for “StatdParty” in subparagraph (b). Hevfaured retention of articles 18 and 19.

13. Mr. NYASULU (Malawi) endorsed the view that article 1Aaild be deleted. In article 15, he proposed that the

word “genuinely” siould be deleted ingsagraph 1 (a) and (b). Paragraph 1 ¢éoliat perhaps refer to “indictment
proceedings” rather than a “complaint”. Paragraphs 2 and 3 were very importahbaladbe retained as they stood.

He was not sure whether article 16 was necessary; he suggested that it might be taken up at a later stage together with
articles 55 and 56. In article 17, paragraph 3, he proposed that “The challenge must take place” be replaced by “The
challenge shall be made”, and that “at a time later than the commencement of the trial” be replaced by “at a later stage”.
The last two lines of gragraph 3 appeared to himnecessary, and paragraph 4 appeared to contradict paragraph 3.

He proposed that paragraph 6 be deleted; once the Court had decided that a case was inadmissible, the Prosecutor
would have to ecept that decision. He endorsed the general view that article 19 should be deleted.

14. Mr. KERMA (Algeria) said that it was important clearly to define the principle of complementarity in the Statute
in order to ensure that the Court would beepted by the entire international community. He could go along with the
majority view that article 14 should be deleted, provided that its contents were reflected in article 17.

15. He could support the Mexican proposal in regard to article 15, and in article 17 favoured the expression “a State”
in paragraph 2 (b), as well as didatof paragraph 6. In regard to article 18, he preferred the alternative approach
suggested. Article 19 raised a number of complex and difficult issues and would be better deleted.

16. Mr. ZELLWEGER (Switzerland) said that the text of article 15 was the fruit of long discussions and would be
best left unchanged. On the other hand, article 16 introduced a number of obstaclesowlkiciotrcontribute to the
smooth functioning of the Court: the safeguards ardaguees mvided in articles 13 and 17 were quite sufficient

in that regard. Article 17, paragraph 2 (Apd read simply “an accused”, anarggraph 2 (b)iwuld begin “a State

which has jurisdiction ..."”. Paragraph 6 was important &odlsl be retained, and article 18 represented a compromise
solution which should not be altered. While he sympathized with the intent of article 19, he considered that it would
raise major drafihg problems and would be best omitted.

17. Mr. AL HUSSEIN (Jordan) said he couldc@ept the compromise language of article 15, rather than the
alternative approach suggested. In article &fvagraph 2 (b), he tooould prefer the expression “a Stategragraph

6 of the article should be retained. The Japanese proposal for an amendment to adidibd8apnsidered, and on
article 19 he supported the views expressed by Switzerland.

18. Mr. YEE (Singapore) said that the formulation of articles 15 and 18 represented a hard-won compromise, and
he urged delegations to accept the articles as they stood. In articledgtaph 2 (b), his preferencewid be for “a

State” rather than “a State Party”, since the former was mdireiwith the concept of comginentarity whereby
exercise of jurisdiction was not limited to States parties alone. He couldoagt article 19 as it stood, since it would
constitute a clear violation of the principle bis in idenand was hard to reconcile with current rules governing
procedure, cooperation and enforcement. Lastly, in@aléd article 20, pragraph 1 (c), he was atigly opposed to

option 2, which would violate the basic principle of equality of persons of different nationalities before the Court.
Option 1 correctly defined how national laws should impact upon the applicable law of the Court.

19. Mr. VERGNE SABOIA (Brazil) said that, dttough he could aept the text of article 15 as it stood, he
considered that the language proposed by Mexico would imprregmaph 2 (b) and (c) and paragraph 3. He



A/CONF.183/C.1/SR.12
Page 5

supported the views expressed by Switzerland in regard to article 17, paragraph 2 (a) and (b), and agreed that the many
complex issues involved made it very difficult to find aneptable formulation for article 19.

20. Mr. DIAZ LA TORRE (Peru) said his delegation too supported the Mexican proposal for the amendment of
article 15, and preferred the term “accused” for article 17, paragraph 2 (a). Article tBneasssary and could be
deleted.

21. Ms. KOLSHUS (Norway) agreed that the text of article 15 represented an extremely important compromise,
which Norway supported without reservation. On the other hand, she was still unconvinced that article 16 was
necessary. In article 17, she would prefer “accusedaiagraph 2 (a) and “a State Party” in paragraph 2 (b), and
supported retention of paragraph 6. She cawdd article 18 but, while appreciating the intent behind article 19, was
inclined to agree that it was best deleted.

22. Mr. BELLO (Nigeria) endorsed the view that article 14 should be deleted. On article 15, the criteria listed in
paragraph 2 were too vague and subjective, and he preferred the alternative apiggesatkds which was in line with

the principle of complementarity and the thimtg@graph of the preamble to the Statute. dlddcaccept article 16,
subject to improved drafting, article 17 with the deletionarbigraph 6, and article 18, but considered that article 19
should be deleted.

23. Mr. EL MASRY (Egypt) said that although his preference would be for retaining article 14, he could go along
with the majority view that it should be deleted. Article 15 as naftetl £emed to imply that the complementarity
principle should be the exception rather than the rule, and that the Court wasraeshpdy which auld pass
judgement on national jurisdictions. The amendments proposed by Mexico improved the text becausedinegdintr

a more objective element, and he agreed that the wondiitggdy” should be deleted irmpagraph 1 (a) and (b).

24. Inarticle 17, he would prefer paragraph 2 (a) to read “an accused or a suspect”, and paragraphg(@ to be
State which has jurisdiction ...”; in paragraph 3, loeil prefer that provision be made for making a challenge to the
Court’s jurisdiction at any time, not only prior to the trial or in exceptional circumstances. In article 18, he preferred
the alternative approach. He considered that article 19 could be deleted.

25. Mr. FADL (Sudan) said that since so many speakers had emphasized the importance of the principle of
complementarity, the Committee’s task was now to ensure that that principle was adequately reflected in the text of
the Statute. In his view, the existing text of article 15 was not clear and he supported the Mexican proposal. He agreed
that articles 16 and 19 could be deleted.

26. Mr. POLITI (Italy) considered that the text of article 15 should remain unchanged. Article 16 asafted d
appeared to create a number of complicated procedural obstacles to the exercise of the Courtienjuvigdtitt

would have the effect afnnecessarily delaying the start of an investigation, but he would be ready to consider any
revised formulation which might be put forward.

27. On article 17, he would likeapagraph 2 (a) to read simply “an accusétihile he was flexible regarding
paragraph 2 (b), his preference was for thedimgr “a StatdParty”; he vould be reluctant to allow States not parties,
which did not share the burden of obligations under the Statute, to share the privilege of challenging the jurisdiction
of the Court. On paragraph 6, he agreed that the Prosebatdd $iave the right to request a review of a decision of
inadmissibility. He supported the text proposed for article 18 but, while sympathizing with the principle behind the
proposal for article 19, agreed that it would be difficult to reackesgent on the text.



A/CONF.183/C.1/SR.12
Page 6

28. Mr. GUNEY (Turkey), referring to the Mexican proposals contained in document A/CONF.183/C.1/L.14, said
that he had earlier expressed the view that article 12 should be deleted; it followed that he could not support the
article 12 bis proposed by Mexico. On the other hand, the proposals for article 15 represented a substantial
improvement which his delegai could support.

29. He could ecept the deletion of article 14 provided that its contents were faithfully reflected in article 17.

30. Mr. GEVORGIAN (Russian Federation) said that while his delegation did not consider retention or deletion of
article 14 to be a major issue, articles 15 to 18 were of exceptional importance, because they would determine the extent
to which States participated in the Statute, and hence the effectiveness of the Court. The first task of the Conference
was to reach a generally acceptable agreement on thag/of those articles, and he urged thatamying out that

task all the views put forward by previous speakers, in particular by the representatives of China, India, Indonesia,
Pakistan, Mexico, Egypt and Turkey, should be taken into account.

31. Ms. TOMI € (Slovenia) said she supported article 15 as it stood. Her preliminary view on the Mexican proposals
was that they would establish an additional threshold at a very early stage ofcteljmgs: her delegation would
prefer not to go beyond the standards set in article 13 asrafed In article 17, paragraph 2 (a), slwld prefer

the term “an accused”, and in paragraph 2 (b) would prefer “an interested State”, aliitlcover both States parties

and States not parties. She supported inclusioarafgpaph 6 of that article, andséaured retention of articles 18 and

19.

32. Mr. CHERQUAOUI (Morocco) considered that article 14 should be retained, or else have its contents inserted
in article 17. Concerning article 15, he preferred the alternative approach suggested, which would better ensure
compliance with the principle of complementarity withioaal jurisdictions. He was flexible regarding article 17 and
supported article 18 as it stood. Hedared deletion of article 19 and in article 20 preferred option 2d@gpaph 1

(c).

33. Mr. TAFA (Botswana) said he would prefer article 14 to be deleted, since its intent was already well articulated
in article 17. Article 15 embodied the principle of coeméntarity excellently and he appealed to the Committee to
leave it unchanged. He found article 17 generafigatable, attough in mragraph 2 (a) heauld prefer “an accused”

and in paragraph 2 (b), “a State”. Hilf supported article 18, which embodied a fundamental principle of criminal
law, but considered that article 19 was fraught with controversy and would be better omitted.

34. Mr. STILLFRIED (Austria) said that article 15 was a carefullgfted compromise whicbught to be left
unchanged. Like many other delegations, he was unconvinced of the need to keep article 16, at least in its current form.
Concerning article 17, paragraph 2 (a), he would prefer “an accused”, but remained flexidiagegaagraph 2 (b),

and supported retention of paragraph 6. Article 18 also represented a canafiigdly compromise, and heuld prefer

it to be retained as it stood. While sympathizing with the underlying concept of article 19, Austria recognized that it
involved very delicate problems which would be difficult to resolve.

35. Mr. MINOVES TRIQUELL (Andara) said the queisin of admissibility was central to the debate on the
establishment of the Court. His Government attached great importance to the principle of complementarity, and
considered that the system of checks and balances provided for under articles 13, 15 and 17 was sufficient to ensure
that the jurisdiction of the Court was compatible with the judicial sovereignty of States. He had sthia@sldo the



A/CONF.183/C.1/SR.12
Page 7

need for article 16. On article 17, it might be useful to consider includingragmaph 4 a specific time limit for
challenges by a State, and he favoured retentioarafypaph 6. He supported indtus of article 19.

36. Ms. WONG (New Zealand) said that in her view it would be dangerous to reopen debate on article 15, the text
of which represented the outcome of long and difficult negotiations. She had some concerns about article 16, which
appeared to provide at least three opportunities for States to contest the Court’s jurisdiction on the same matter.
Article 19 was interesting and would increase the Court’s effectiveness, but she recognized that there were problems
associated with it.

37. Mr. VAN BOVEN (Netherlands) agreed that article 15 should be retained. On the question of admissibility, he
believed that, as a general principle, domestic legislation granting impunity for heinous crimes covered by the Statute
should not be a basis for determining that a case before the Court was inadmissible.

38. Concerning article 17 apagraph 2 (a), heaured the term “an accused”, and arggraph 2 (b), the term “a

State Party”. He strongly supported theyision in the samegsagraph to the effect that, in peedings with respect

to jurisdiction or admissibility, not only those submitting the case but also victims should be entitled to submit
observations to the Court. He favoured retentioradcdigraph 6. Article 18ikewise the result of lengthy negotiations,

was acceptable to his deleigat and he wished to express support for article 19, which embodied an important
principle.

39. Ms. VARGAS (Colombia) supported the amendments proposed by Mexico to article 15, and those proposed
orally by the United States to article 16. For article BHragraph 2 (b), shevfaured using the expression “a State”,
but the wording should perhaps be made clearer.

40. Mr. NIYOMRERKS (Thailand) favoured deletion of article 14 but could support articles 15 and 16. For
article 17, paragraph (), he would prefer “an accused” and ianagraph 2 (b) “a State”. He supported retentf
articles 18 and 19, and favoured option 2 farggraph 1 (c) of article 20.

41. Mr. PHAM TRUONG GIANG (Viet Nam) said that complementarity wasuadamental principle of the

Statute. According to that principle, whenever national jurisdiction was available to try a particular case, that case
would not be admissible before the Court, and conversely a person who had been tried by the Court could not be tried
again by another court.

42. He too favoured deletion of article 14, which was already reflected in article 1@ullgocept the compromise
text contained in article 15, which embodied the principle of cemghtarity. He wuld propose the deletion of
paragraph 6 of article 17. He had no difficulty with article 18 bauld/favour deletion of article 19.

43. Mr. PEREZ OTERMIN (Uruguay) said that the task of the Conference was to strike a proper balance between
the authority of the Court and the authority of legitimately constituted national judicial systems. For decisions by the
Court to be given mcedence over the ddoiss of national courts would not be in line with the notion of
complementarity.

44. He supported article 15 in principle but considered that the Mexican proposals would improve the text. His
delegation would suggest that the words “without grounds” be added after the word “unwilliagagnaph 1 (a),

and that the word “unfounded” be added before “purposediagraph 2 (a). That changewld help to safeguard

the legitimate right of States to take decisions in the st nabnal security.



A/CONF.183/C.1/SR.12
Page 8

45. His delegation had no objections to the deletion of article 14 provided that the principle it contained was clearly
embodied in article 17. Concerning article 17, he too preferred the wording “an interested Statjriaph 2 (b).
He favoured article 18 but agreed that article 19 would be best deleted.

46. Mr. DIAZ PANIAGUA (Costa Rica) supported the view that discussion of article 15 should not be reopened,
and did not think the Mexican proposals would improve the text. He saw no need for article 16, and on article 19 he
considered that the problem would be better dealt with through cooperation between the Court and the court which had
carried out thénitial trial.

47. Mr. AL ANSARI (Kuwait), referring to article 17, said that in his view the right to make challenges should be
limited to States parties. The text of article 18 would be improvear#graphs 1 and 2 were combined ingls
paragraph. Aliough the wording of article 19 was perhaps not sufficiently precise, he had no problem with it in legal
terms.

48. Mr. AL-AZIZI (Oman) said that in respect to article 15 his delegation supported the alternative approach
suggested. He supported article 17, and for article\i@ifad the alternative approach. Article 19 should be deleted.

49. Mr. MIRZAEE YENGEJEH (Islamic Republic of Iran) joined earlier speakers in emphasizing the central
importance of the principle of complementarity. He supportedidelef article 14, and for article 15 preferred the
alternative approach. In article 17, paragraph 2 (b),cwédiprefer the term “a State”, and would support deletion of
paragraph 6 in the same artidlghile endorsing @ragraphs 1 and 2 of article 18, heud prefer the deletion of
paragraph 3. Lastly, he supported the dmbedf article 19.

Article 20
50. The CHAIRMAN invited Mr. Saland (Sweden) to introduce article 20.

51. Mr. SALAND (Sweden), acting as Coordinator, said that article 20 was a key article of the Statute in that it
indicated how “law” was to be interpreted. Discussion in thedPatpry Committee had shown considerable support
for the order of precedence set out arggraph 1, whereby the Courbwd apply firstly the Statute, secondly if
necessary applicable treaties and rules of international law and, lastly, national law in one way or another.

52. He drew attention to the two options suggesteddmgraph 1 (c)Under option 1, which had had the support

of the broad majority, the Court would not apply any national law directly, but would rather apply general principles
derived from laws to be found in different iagual legal systems. Under option 2, the Court would apply national law
directly. Paragraph 2 of the article made reference to case lawagagtaph 3, which was a consensus text, required
that the law applied should be consistent with certain internationally recognized values.

53. The United States proposal for paragraph 1 (a) (A/COBSFC.1/L.9) touched on a quiest of principle which
had a bearing on many parts of the Statute, articheot think that question could be resolved solely within the
context of article 20. Concerning paragraph 3, he pointed out that footnote 63 in document AK3Id.1 was
now obsolete since the matter had already been dealt with in the context of article 21. The only ibstencksihat
remained to be discussed was therefore the choice of optiorarémgraph 1 (c), and he urged that disicurssef it
should be kept as brief as possible. Angstaading issues could be dealt with in informal consultations.



A/CONF.183/C.1/SR.12
Page 9

54. Mr. CHUKRI (Syrian Arab Republic) said he had no basic problem with the text of article 20. He would prefer
paragraph 1 (b) to read “ifenessary, applicable treaties and the principles and rules of public international law,
including the established principles of either the Genewavéntions or international humanitarian law”. For
paragraph 1 (c), hevaured option 2.

55. Mr. KOUAKOU BROU (Céte d'lvoire), supported byls. SINJELA (Zambia), said he favoured deletion of

the brackets in paragraph 1 (b). Conaay paragraph 1 (c), he preferred it 1, since general principles of law
derived from national laws came closer to international law, and thus would be more practical for the judge to apply
as well as being an additionalagantee for the personibg prosecuted. He supported retentionarfggraphs 2 and

3.

56. Mr. AL NOAIMI (United Arab Emirates) said that the Arabic versionashgraph 1 (b)rould be aligned with
the English verisn. For @ragraph 1 (c), heauld prefer option 2, with the deletion of the words “and only in so far
as it is consistent with the objectives and purpose of this Statute” after the words “failing that”.

57. Mr. NYASULU (Malawi) said that for paragraph 1 (c) he would prefeioopt. The words within brackets were
taken care of by paragraph 3, andld therefore be deleted.

58. Mr. AGBETOMEY (Togo) also preferred option 1.

59. Mr. JARASCH (Germany) said he would prefer the phrase within brackewragpaph 1 (b) to be retained.
For paragraph 1 (c) hevlaured option 1, and he couldcagpt paragraphs 2 and 3. Tleited States proposal
regarding pragraph 1 (a)f®uld be dealt with in another context.

60. Mr. BELLO (Nigeria), referring to @ragraph 1 (c), said that in his viewiopt1 lacked clarity and gave wide
discretionary powers to the Court which were not based on any set criteria. He therefore preferred option 2.

61. Mr. AL ANSARI (Kuwait) said that for paragraph 1 (c) heul prefer option 1, with the words “of legal
systems” replaced by “and from rules and regulations which constitute the legal systems”. The words in brackets should
be included.

62. Ms. LI Yanduan (China) said that for paragraph 1 (c) her delegawould prefer option 2.

63. Mr. SALINAS (Chile) said he would prefelapagraph 1 (b) to imede a mention of international humanitarian
law. For paragraph 1 (c) hevffaured option 1.

64. Mr. BAZEL (Afghanistan) said he too would support removal of the bracketragraph 1 (b), but would
suggest that “including the established principles of the law of armed conflict” be replacedumirignthe established
principles of international humanitarian law”. F@aragraph 1 (c), he ¥aured option 2.

65. Mr. NATHAN (Israel), referring to aragraph 1 (b), considered that the bracketed phrasedimg the
established principles of the law of armed conflict” was unnecessary and could be deleted, since such principles
obviously formed part of the principles of general international law. &@goaph 1 (c) he preferred mpt 1, since

option 2 might have the effect of causing confusion and conflict in the Court’s jurisprudence.



A/CONF.183/C.1/SR.12
Page 10

66. Mr. TAFA (Botswana) also considered that the bracketed words in paragraphhbiflg) Ise deleted. For
paragraph 1 (c) he preferred igpt 1; option 2 was too prescriptive.

67. Ms. TOMIC (Slovenia) said she too would prefer deletion of the words in bracketsagrpph 1 (b). For
paragraph 1 (c) she would favour igpt1, which would garantee for everyone therfdamental principle of equality
before the law and before the Court.

68. Mr. KROKHMAL (Ukraine) said his delegation unconditionally supported article 20 as a whole, with a
preference for option 1 for paragraph 1 (c), with thedimgy in brackets included, though it could perhaps bexfted
in positive terms.

69. Mr. PALACIOS TREVINO (Mexico) said he had no problem with paragraph 1 but had some small changes
to propose. In paragraph 1 (a), the words “and its Rules of Procedutgidadce”, and in @ragraph 1 (b) the words

“if necessary”, should be deleted. The bracketed wordaregpaph 1 (b)lould be included, and foapagraph 1 (c)

he would prefer option 1.

70. Mr. EL MASRY (Egypt) said he would have no problem @eepting article 20 with the amendment proposed
by the representative of Syria, and with option 2 fmagraph 1 (c).

71. Mr. Young-wook CHUN (Republic of Korea) supported the inclusion of the bracketed words in paragraph 1 (b),
and for paragraph 1 (c)vaured option 1, but with the words in brackets deleted.

72. Ms. DASKALOPOULOU-LIVADA (Greece) considered that iaragraph 1 (b) the words in brackets were
superfluous, since international law in any case included the law of armed conflict. She could agree to inclusion of a
reference to international humanitarian law, and could support the Mexican representative’s proposal for the deletion
of the words “if necessary”. For paragraph 1 (c), she supportehdptwith the inclusion of the words in brackets,

which provided a useful safeguard.

73. Mr. ADAMOU (Niger) said that his delegation too favoured option 1 éoagraph 1 (c).

74. Ms. VENTURINI (Italy) considered that the bracketed text in paragraph ¢iidbe included in order to
highlight the importance of the principles of the law of armed conflict in matters to be decided by the Court. For
paragraph 1 (c) shevfaured option 1, with inclusion of the bracketed text, which was fully in conformity with the
tradition of international instruments.

75. Mr. ADDO (Ghana)Mr. KAM (Burkina Faso) antr. COTTIER (Switzerland) supported the previous
speaker’s position.

76. Mr. MLU HONGO KABINDA-NGOY (Democratic Republic of the Congo) considered that ithftirnly of
paragraph 1 (a) could be clarified, angbfared deletion of the bracketed text arggraph 1 (b). He preferred mpt 1
for paragraph 1 (c), with deleh of the bracketed text.

77. Mr. AL-HAJERY (Qatar) faroured option 2 for aragraph 1 (c).
78. Mr. SCHEFFER (United States of America) said that, in document A/CQRBS/C.1/L.9, his delegain was

proposing that the words “and its Rules of Procedure and Evidenceitagraph 1 (a)r®uld be replaced by
“including its annexes”. The annexes, however they were ultimately negotiated, should be an integral part of the Statute



A/CONF.183/C.1/SR.12
Page 11

and therefore should have priority in any applicable law applied by the Court. He strongly supported inclusion of the
bracketed text in paragraph 1 (b), since there was a need to ensure that war crimes were interpreted with reference to
such principles as proportionality and militargcassity, which were included in the law of armed conflict. For
paragraph 1 (c) hevaured option 1 with the deletion of the bracketed text.

79. Ms. VARGAS (Colombia) said that it was unclear what was meant by “applicable treaties” in paragraph 1 (b).
For paragraph 1 (c) shevfaured option 1, with inclusion of the bracketed text.

The meeting rose at 1.05 p.m.



